
 

PO Box 457 
Turramurra NSW 2074 

 
ABN: 69 041 751 671 

 
PH: 0437 251 358 

Email: philclifton@pclifton.com 
 

10 October 2022 
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Mr John Sabbouh 
Richard Crookes Constructions 
Level 3, 4 Broadcast Way 
Artarmon NSW 2064 
 
RE: IN-SITU ABANDONMENT OF UNDERGROUND PETROLEUM STORAGE TANK AT THE 
REAR OF THE MONASTERY BUILDING AT ST JOHN OF GOD RICHMOND 
HOSPITAL, 177 GROSE VALE ROAD, NORTH RICHMOND NSW 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
We refer to our recent site inspection and discussion in regard to the in-situ abandonment of the 
underground petroleum storage tank that has been found in the rear area of the former monastery 
building following demolition of that building within the Richard Crookes Constructions site area at 
the St John of God Richmond Hospital at 177 Grose Vale Road, North Richmond NSW (the site). 
 
Following demolition of the former monastery building, a small buried storage tank was found in the 
rear area of the building with an attached filler pipe extending along the eastern side of the former 
building to the front area near the road.  At the end of the filler pipe is a cap fixed with a padlock. 
 
To enable construction work to be carried out in this area of the site, the tank needs to be either 
abandoned in-situ or removed and disposed of.  Each scenario requires that the soil in the area of 
the tank and filler pipe be validated to confirm that there is no contamination from the product that 
was stored in the tank. 
 
The in-situ abandonment of the redundant tank is to be carried out in accordance with the 
requirements detailed in section 6 of the NSW Protection of the Environment Operations 
(Underground Petroleum Storage Systems) Regulation 2019. 
 
This section of the regulation requires that the following actions / activities are carried out for the in-
situ abandonment of the redundant tank: 
 
If a tank or UPSS has been abandoned, a duly qualified person must be engaged to:  

• remove all flammable and/or combustible liquid and dispose of it appropriately, and 

• remove any residual flammable vapour for safe disposal, and 

• remove the tank/s and associated pipework. 
 
If it is not reasonably practicable to remove the tank or UPSS, ensure that it is made safe by filling 
the tank with an inert solid material. 
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Examples of when it may not be reasonably practicable to remove a tank include where the removal 
would present an unacceptable risk of damage to:  

• a supporting foundation of an existing building or structure. 

• an in-service tank or UPSS. 

• sub-surface pipework, services infrastructure or assets which are unrelated to the UPSS. 

• a sensitive receiving environment. 
 
In these circumstances, it is recommended that a duly qualified person (i.e. a structural or electrical 
engineer) confirms that it is impractical to remove the tank(s). 
 
 
Prior to In-Situ Decommissioning the Abandoned Tank 
 
Clause 23 of the Regulation requires the person responsible for the storage system to advise the 
relevant local council at least 30 days prior to the proposed decommissioning of the tank or storage 
system.  For urgent or unforeseen situations, the notification must be made as soon as possible. 
 
Consult with the local council for any requirements and/or approvals necessary for the proposed 
tank removal and/or remediation works.  
 
Then, no later than 60 days following the decommissioning of a tank or UPSS, a report must be 
provided to the relevant local council.  If remediation of the site is required, the report is required no 
later than 60 days after the remediation has been completed.  
 
The attached checklist (copied from the NSW EPA guideline for implementing the Protection of the 
Environment Operations (Underground Petroleum Storage Systems) Regulation 2019) summarises 
the steps that are required to be taken for the removal of the tank and validation of the surrounding 
area. 
 
If you require any further information, please contact the undersigned on 0437 251 358. 
 
Yours faithfully 
P. CLIFTON & ASSOCIATES PTY LTD 

 
Philip Clifton 
Principal 
BOHS IP402 Certified 
SafeWork NSW Licenced Asbestos Assessor 
Attachments: NSW EPA Checklist
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